
 

AGENDA FOR 

 

LICENSING AND SAFETY PANEL 

 
 
Contact:: Leigh Webb  
Direct Line: 0161 253 5399 
E-mail: l.m.webb@bury.gov.uk 
Web Site:  www.bury.gov.uk 
 
 
To: All Members of Licensing and Safety Panel 
 

Councillors : N Bayley, I Bevan, D Cassidy, J Grimshaw, 
P Heneghan, T Holt, D Jones (Chair), A Matthews, 
T Pickstone, A Quinn, S Southworth, B Vincent and 
J Walton 

 
 
Dear Member/Colleague 
 
Licensing and Safety Panel 
 
You are invited to attend a meeting of the Licensing and Safety Panel 
which will be held as follows:- 
 

Date: Thursday, 8 May 2014 

Place:  Meeting Room A&B, Town Hall, Bury 

Time: 7.00 pm 

Briefing 

Facilities: 

If Opposition Members and Co-opted Members require 
briefing on any particular item on the Agenda, the 
appropriate Director/Senior Officer originating the 
related report should be contacted. 

Notes:  



AGENDA 
 
 
 

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
Members of the Licensing and Safety Panel are asked to consider whether 
they have an interest in any of the matters on the agenda, and if so, to 
formally declare that interest.  
 

3  MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING  (Pages 1 - 6) 
 
To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the last meeting held on 3 
April 2014. A copy of the Minutes is attached  
 

4  PUBLIC QUESTION TIME   
 
Questions are invited from members of the public present at the meeting 
on any matters for which this Panel is responsible. 
 
Approximately 30 minutes will be set aside for Public Question Time if 
required.  
 

5  OPERATIONAL REPORT  (Pages 7 - 8) 
 
A report from the Assistant Director (Localities) is attached.  
 

6  REVIEW OF CURRENT POLICIES  RELATING TO THE LICENSING 
AND TESTING OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE 
VEHICLES  (Pages 9 - 20) 
 
A report from the Assistant Director (Localities) is attached.  
 

7  URGENT BUSINESS   
 
Any other business, which by reason of special circumstances, the Chair 
agrees may be considered as a matter of urgency  
 

8  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC   
 
To consider passing the appropriate resolution under section 100 (A)(4) of 
the Local Government Act 1972 that the press and public be excluded 
from the meeting during consideration of the following item of business 
since it involves the likely disclosure of the exempt information stated. 
  

9  PROPOSED SUSPENSION/REVOCATION OF A PRIVATE HIRE 
DRIVER'S LICENCE  (Pages 21 - 24) 
 
A report from the Assistant Director (Localities) is attached.  
 
 



10  APPLICATION FOR A PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER'S LICENCE  (Pages 25 - 
28) 
 
A report from the Assistant Director (Localities) is attached.  
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

525 

Minutes of:    LICENSING AND SAFETY PANEL 
 
Date of Meeting:   3 April 2014 
 
Present: Councillor D Jones (In the Chair) 

Councillors:  N Bayley, I Bevan, D M Cassidy,     
P Heneghan, A K Matthews, A Quinn,                
S Southworth, B Vincent and J F Walton 
 

Apologies for absence: Councillors:  J Grimshaw, T Holt and T Pickstone 
 
Public Attendance: There were no members of public present at the 

meeting 

 

    
Before the start of the meeting, the Chair, Councillor Jones, informed the Members of 
the Licensing and Safety Panel that there would be an additional meeting of this 
Committee to be held on 8 May 2014, before the end of the Municipal year. 
 
Councillor Jones also welcomed Councillor Heneghan as a new Member to the Licensing 
and Safety Panel. 
 
LSP.945 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
  There were no declarations of interest raised in relation to any items on 

the agenda. 
 

LSP.946 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING 
 
 Delegated decision: 
 
 That the Minutes of the Licensing and Safety Panel meeting held on 4 

March 2014, be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 
LSP.947 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME 
 
 There were no questions raised under this item.  

Councillor Jones informed the Committee that the next Taxi Liaison 
meeting would take place on 30 April 2014 and Members would be 
updated at the next meeting of the Licensing and Safety Panel on the 
discussions of this meeting. 
 

LSP.948 URGENT BUSINESS 
 
 There was no urgent business to report at the meeting. 
 
LSP.949 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Delegated decision: 
 
That in accordance with Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following items of business since it involved the likely 
disclosure of information relating to individuals who hold Licences granted  

Agenda Item 3Document Pack Page 1



 
 

526 

Licensing and Safety Panel 4 April 2014 
 

 
by the Authority or applicants for Licences provided by the Authority. 
 

LSP.950 APPLICATIONS FOR PUBLIC/ PRIVATE HIRE DRIVERS’ LICENCES 

  The Assistant Director (Localities) submitted a report regarding 
applications for Public/Private Hire Vehicles Drivers’ Licences. 

 
  The Licensing Manager presented a report submitted by the Assistant 

Director (Localities) regarding applications for Public/Private Hire Vehicles 
Drivers’ Licences. 
 
The applicants were invited to attend the meeting for separate hearings. 
The Chair outlined the procedure to be followed and the applicants were 
invited to address the Panel separately on their applications and any 
matters referred to in the Officer’s report.  The Licensing Manager read 
out the contents of each report which were accepted by the applicants. 
 
1. The Applicant 08/2014 who was unrepresented, was invited to address 

the Panel. He explained that he had previously been a bus driver and 
made a mistake by driving whilst under the influence of alcohol. Since 
the return of his licence he had driven professionally and now wanted 
to be a Private Hire Driver. He further stated he had no points on his 
licence and had never been convicted of any other offence. 

 
Delegated decision: 
 

  The Panel carefully considered all the representations and evidence 
submitted and taking into account the Council’s Conviction Guidelines, 
the Panel found that: 

• The offence had been committed 6 years ago. 
• The Applicant realised his mistake and the effect it had on him. 
• The Applicant had been driving since the return of his licence in 

December 2009. 
• The Applicant had no further endorsements or convictions. 

The Panel therefore determined the applicant to be a fit and proper 
person in accordance with the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976 and the application for a Private Hire Driver’s 
Licence was granted. 

2. The Applicant 09/2014 who was represented by Mr Tariq, was invited 
to address the Panel. It was explained that the offence for which the 
Applicant was cautioned was committed almost 5 years ago and 
resulted from a misunderstanding with the Police as to the registration 
details of the vehicle the Applicant was driving. The police had stopped 
the Applicant in a vehicle and had checked the wrong registration 
details. This had suggested the vehicle he was driving was uninsured. 
This led to a dispute and the Applicant was arrested. When the mistake 
was realised, he was released but cautioned for his actions towards the 
police The Applicant stated he regretted his actions. 
 

Document Pack Page 2



 
 

527 

Licensing and Safety Panel 4 April 2014 
 

Delegated decision: 
 

  The Panel carefully considered all the representations and evidence 
submitted and taking into account the Council’s Conviction Guidelines, 
the Panel found that: 

• The offence had been committed almost 5 years ago. 
• The Applicant realised his mistake and showed remorse. 
• The Applicant had no further endorsements or convictions. 

The Panel therefore determined the applicant to be a fit and proper 
person in accordance with the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976 and the application for a Private Hire Driver’s 
Licence was granted. 

3. The Applicant 10/2014 attended the hearing and was represented by 
his solicitor, Mr Khan, from Adamson’s Solicitors and was also 
accompanied by a character witness.    
 
Prior to the report being read by the Licensing Manager, he pointed out 
that the Applicant had not in fact declared all of his convictions, but 
only the first one listed. 
 
Mr Khan then addressed the Panel on behalf of the Applicant and 
explained separately each of the offences for which the Applicant had 
been convicted. He explained that each had been committed during a 
bad phase in the Applicant’s life when his was with the ‘wrong crowd’ 
and intoxicated and he was very sorry for his actions. 

 
  In relation to the 3 separate offences of theft on 24 December 2011, 

Mr Khan explained that the Applicant had been handed the mobile 
phones in question and that he had put them in his pocket; he had not 
stolen them directly.  He had been seen by security and was stopped 
and arrested.  

 
  In relation to the breach of a conditional discharge on 24 December 

2011, Mr Khan explained that the Applicant had to go to Pakistan as 
his father was ill, however he had not given the Probation Officer his 
date of return and he was out of the country for longer than expected. 

 
  In relation to the failure to comply with the requirement of a 

community order resulting from the original conviction on 10 January 
2012, Mr Khan explained that the Applicant had produced a medical 
note to Bury Magistrates’ Court following an operation on his jaw 
because of a problem tooth and the order was revoked. 

 
  Mr Khan reported that the Applicant had since moved away from the 

Bury and Bolton area to Newcastle in order to start a new life.  He had 
been working as a delivery driver at Dominoes Pizza and a character 
reference was read out to the Members of the Licensing and Safety  

 
 

Document Pack Page 3



 
 

528 

Licensing and Safety Panel 4 April 2014 
 
 
  Panel from the Manager which stated that the Applicant was highly 

respected and a model employee. 
 
 The character witness who accompanied the Applicant stated that she 

had regularly used taxis driven by the Applicant and on one occasion 
had left her phone in the taxi, which the Applicant had returned to her. 
The witness stated she had been out with the Applicant when the first 
theft incident had taken place and that the witness had advised the 
Applicant to move away from the area. The witness confirmed that the 
Applicant had moved away from the area, was still working in 
Newcastle and had redeemed himself. 

 
  Mr Khan stated that the Applicant was very remorseful for his past and 

now needed the opportunity to prove himself and return to the 
profession he was familiar with to make something of his life. 

 
Delegated decision: 
 

  The Panel carefully considered all the representations and evidence 
submitted and taking into account the Council’s Conviction Guidelines, 
the Panel found that: 

• the offences for which the Applicant had been convicted and 
sentenced were of a serious nature, 

• the facts surrounding the commission of the offences were of 
concern particularly as they involved alcohol and took place 
during the early hours of the morning,  

• there had been a short time since these offences had been 
committed and sentenced and in particular the fact that the 
conviction date of the last offence was within the last 2 years, 

• the classification of convictions for theft within the Council’s 
Conviction Guidelines is as ‘offences of dishonesty’, and that 
such offences will generally result in the application being 
refused if the conviction for an offence is less than 3 years prior 
to the date of application 

• there was a risk the Applicant may fall back with the ‘wrong 
crowd’ referred to upon his return to the area. 

  The Panel therefore determined that applicant 10/2014 was not a fit 
and proper person in accordance with the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, to hold a Licence and the 
application for a Private Hire Driver’s Licence was therefore refused. 

 
The Applicant was advised of the right to appeal within 21 days of 

notification to the Magistrates’ Court.  

 

4. The Applicant 11/2014 who was unrepresented, was invited to address 
the Panel. He explained that he had been to a New Year Eve party and 
had acted stupidly in moving a friend’s vehicle to a nearby car park, 
because the friend was too drunk to drive. He himself was over the 
legal limit and was stopped by the police.  

Document Pack Page 4



 
 

529 

Licensing and Safety Panel 4 April 2014 
 
 
Delegated decision: 
 

  The Panel carefully considered all the representations and evidence 
submitted and taking into account the Council’s Conviction Guidelines, 
the Panel found that: 

• The offence had been committed 6 years ago. 
• The Applicant realised his mistake and the effect it had on him. 
• The Applicant had no further endorsements or convictions. 

The Panel therefore determined the applicant to be a fit and proper 
person in accordance with the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976 and the application for a Private Hire Driver’s 
Licence was granted. 

 

 

COUNCILLOR JONES 
CHAIR 
 
Please note:  The meeting started at 7.00 pm and finished at 8.20 pm 
 
 
 
 

 

Document Pack Page 5



Document Pack Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



 1

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

DECISION OF: 
 

LICENSING & SAFETY PANEL 

 

DATE: 

 

8th MAY 2014 

 

SUBJECT: 

 

OPERATIONAL REPORT   

 

REPORT FROM: 

 

ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (LOCALITIES) 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: 

 

W A JOHNSON 

  

 
TYPE OF DECISION: 

  
N/A – Report for information only 

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION/STATUS: 

 
This paper is in the public domain 
 

 

SUMMARY: 

 

A report to advise members on operational issues within 
the licensing service. 
 

 
IMPLICATIONS: 

 

 
Wards Affected: 

 
N/A 
 

 

Scrutiny Interest: 
 

 

Internal Scrutiny Panel 

 
1.0 BACKGROUND  

 
1.1 The report advises Members on operational issues within the licensing service. 
 
2.0 LICENSING HEARINGS PANEL 
 
2.1 On the 26th March 2014 a Licensing Hearings panel considered an application 

for the  grant of a premises licence in respect of Topshop, 20 Hurst Street, Bury 
Prestwich. Representations were received from Greater Manchester Police. 
Members considered the evidence and decided to grant the premises licence. 
 
 

Contact Details: 
 
W A Johnson 
Head of Commercial and Licensing 
Environmental Services 
3 Knowsley Place 
Duke Street 

Agenda 

Item 

 
REPORT FOR DECISION 

Agenda Item 5Document Pack Page 7



 2

Bury 
BL9 0EJ 
Tel: 0161 253 5514 
Email: a.johnson@bury.gov.uk 
 
 

Document Pack Page 8



 1

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
DECISION OF: 

 
LICENSING AND SAFETY PANEL 

 
DATE: 

 
8TH MAY 2014 

 
SUBJECT: 

 
REVIEW OF CURRENT POLICIES  RELATING TO THE 
LICENSING AND TESTING OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE 
AND PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLES   

 
REPORT FROM: 

 
ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (LOCALITIES) 
 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: 

 
MR M BRIDGE 

  

 
TYPE OF DECISION: 

 
COUNCIL  
 

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION/STATUS: 

This paper is within the public domain  
 

 
SUMMARY: 

 
Review of current policies relating to the licensing and 
testing of Hackney Carriages and Private Hire vehicles.   
 

 
OPTIONS & 
RECOMMENDED OPTION 

 
 

 

 
1. To re-introduce the “exceptional condition” criteria 

for hackney carriages at 10 years and as an 
incentive to encourage proactive maintenance 
provide for additional testing requirements where 
vehicles fail below acceptable standards.  This is  
the recommended option as detailed at 5.0 
 

2. Continue with the current licensing and testing 
policies in relation to both Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire vehicles. 

 
3. Make alternative amendments to the current 

policies. 

 
IMPLICATIONS: 

 

 
Corporate Aims/Policy 
Framework: 

 
Do the proposals accord with the Policy 
Framework?  Yes �  No  

Statement by the S151 Officer: 
Financial Implications and Risk 
Considerations: 

There are no specific issues from the report 
other than potential costs/risks associated 
with legal appeals. 

 
Statement by Executive Director 

 
The cost of the licensing function are funded 

Agenda 

Item 

 
REPORT FOR DECISION 

Agenda Item 6Document Pack Page 9



 2

of Resources: through the fees and charges levied by the 
Council. There may be additional costs if 
appeals are lodged with the Magistrates and 
Crown Courts. 

 
Equality/Diversity implications: 

 
Yes   No �  
The review of the existing hackney carriage 
vehicle age policy will impact on the 
identified stakeholders, but does not impact 
on any aspect of protected equality 
characteristics. A copy of the equality 
analysis form is attached at appendix 3. 
 

 
Considered by Monitoring Officer: 

 
Yes. The purpose of the review of the existing 
policies is to consider having a consistent and 
equitable approach in relation to the licensing 
and testing of both Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire Vehicles.  
 

 
Wards Affected: 

 
All 

 
Scrutiny Interest: 
 

 
Internal Scrutiny Panel 

 
TRACKING/PROCESS   DIRECTOR: 
 

Chief Executive/ 
Strategic Leadership 

Team 

Executive 
Member/Chair 

Ward Members Partners 

N/A 
 

   

Scrutiny Committee Committee Council  

 
1.0 BACKGROUND  
 
1.1 In March 2000, the Licensing and Safety Committee resolved that any vehicle 

entering the Hackney Carriage or the Private Hire vehicle fleet must be under 
10 years old from the date of first registration unless the vehicle was in 
‘exceptional condition’. In addition, once licensed, all vehicles must meet the 
‘exceptional condition’ criteria once it reached its 10th birthday and on 
subsequent periodic inspections otherwise the vehicle licence would not be 
renewed. The ‘exceptional condition’, criteria, which still applies to Private Hire 
vehicles but not to Hackney Carriages, is attached at appendix 1.   

 
1.2 On the 2nd February 2006, Members of the Licensing and Safety Panel reviewed 

the above policy at the request of the Hackney trade and in relation to  
Hackney vehicles, resolved to replace it with the following criteria: All vehicles 
entering the Hackney Carriage fleet must be no more than 3 years old from the 
date of first registration and that once licensed,  a vehicle could continue to be 
licensed beyond 10 years old subject to the vehicle passing its 10th renewal and 
subsequent periodic inspections with no more than 5 faults being identified (the 
5 Fault Rule). A copy of the current defined criteria is attached at appendix 2.   

 

Document Pack Page 10



 3

1.3 On the 15th June 2009, the Panel approved a further request from the Hackney 
Carriage Drivers’ Association to amend the Hackney Carriage vehicle age policy 
so that the requirement that all new vehicles entering the fleet to be under 3 
years old did not apply to existing vehicle licence holders and to allow them to 
replace their vehicle with a vehicle no more than 6 years old.   

 
1.4 On the 10th June 2013, the Panel considered a report outlining a number of 

complaints that the above Hackney Carriage age policy discriminated against 
new entrants to the fleet. Members resolved to amend the policy so as to allow 
both new entrants and existing vehicle licence holders, to licence a vehicle up 
to 6 years old from the date of first registration subject to other general criteria 
being met. In addition, following complaints from the Hackney Carriage Drivers’ 
Association, Members  resolved to amend the  ‘5 Fault Rule’, to make it more 
achievable, for example, by defining a number of faults to the vehicle bodywork 
as counting as only one fault. Members also resolved to extend the ‘5 Fault 
Rule’ to all Hackney Carriages over 6 years old.    

 
2.0 REQUEST TO REVIEW THE CURRENT VEHICLE POLICIES 

 
2.1 Since the 10th June 2013, no Hackney Carriage under 10 years old has failed to 

meet the ‘5 Fault Rule’ criteria. However, the Service continues to receive 
complaints from the Hackney Carriage Drivers’ Association that the current 
vehicle testing policy is unfair and discriminates in that the ‘5 Fault Rule’ 
applies to Hackney Carriages and not to Private Hire vehicles of the same age. 
In response to these complaints, the Panel resolved to review the existing 
vehicle licensing and testing policies in relation to both Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire vehicles.   

 
3.0 CONSULTATION   
 
3.1 Between the 3rd January and the 10th March 2014. the Licensing Service has 

engaged in a consultation with all Hackney Carriage and Private Hire vehicle 
licence holders, Private Hire Operators and Trade Association representatives. 
All consultees were personally written to and invited to submit their views on 
the current vehicle licensing and testing policies and to provide any suggestions 
for improving them. The result of the consultation is  as follows: 

 

Number of  
consultation  
documents  
sent out:: 
 

Total number of  
respondents: 

Number of 
Hackney  
respondents:  
 

Number of  
Private Hire 
respondents: 
 

864  66  (approx 7.6%) 47 (out of 86) 20 (out of 728) 

 
3.2 A summary of the responses received is attached at appendix 3.  
 
4.0 OPTIONS 
 
4.1 Members are requested to consider the options on page 1. The preferred option 

based on the Licensing Services experience of administering the current policy, 
would be to remove the “5 Fault Rule” and to replace it with the current 
‘exceptional condition’ criteria. Extending the ‘exceptional condition‘ criteria in 
this manner would not only address the complaints from the Hackney Carriage 
Drivers’ Association that they are being discriminated against but it would 
enable them, like the Private Hire trade, to licence or replace their current 
licensed taxi with a vehicle up to 10 years old, subject to the vehicle passing 

Document Pack Page 11



 4

it’s initial mechanical/appearance inspection at Bradley Fold. The ‘exceptional 
condition’ criteria is a much simpler regime to administer and has been applied 
to Private Hire vehicles for the past 13 years. It will also be seen from the 
summary of the recent consultation that the vast majority of the current 728 
Private Hire vehicle licence holders did not respond to the consultation, 
presumably because they have no complaint about the licensing and testing 
policy being applied to their vehicles. Of those that did respond, the majority 
have indicated that they are satisfied with the ‘exceptional condition’ policy. 

 
4.2 If Members are minded to reapply this policy to Hackney Carriages, they may 

wish to consider allowing a 3 year transitional period for existing vehicle licence 
holders who may have made financial plans in respect of their vehicle, to  allow 
them to continue to be licensed subject to the “5 Fault Rule”. However, those 
who wish should be allowed to transfer to the new policy immediately.  

 
5.0 MAINTENANCE OF VEHICLES 

 
5.1 The “5 fault rule” was in part introduced to encourage ongoing proactive 

maintenance of vehicles particularly as they got older. In removing the “5 fault 
rule” Members are also requested to consider adopting the following policy in 
order to encourage that vehicles are properly serviced and maintained in the 
future. If adopted, the policy would be extended to both the Hackney and 
Private Hire trades. 
 

5.2 In addition to the normal pass or fail situation,  any vehicle, regardless of age, 
which fails any two consecutive periodic inspections with 3 or more MOT failure 
faults (as defined in the VOSA MOT Inspection Manual for Private Passenger & 
Light Commercial Vehicle Testing) will result in the vehicle having to undergo 2 
interim tests per year. The policy is to be applied as follows: -  
 

a. If a vehicle fails a first grant or a licence renewal inspection with 3 or 
more defined MOT faults and subsequently fails its interim inspection 
with 3 or more MOT faults, when the vehicle licence is next renewed, 
the vehicle will be subject to 2 interim tests during the period of the 
12 month licence. The vehicle owner will be required to pay the 
Licensing Service the requisite fee for the additional test before the 
licence is granted. 

 
b. If a vehicle fails an interim inspection with 3 or more MOT faults and 

subsequently fails the next renewal inspection with 3 or more MOT 
faults, the licence will be renewed subject to 2 interim tests during 
the period of the 12 month licence. The vehicle owner will be required 
to pay the Licensing Service the requisite fee for the additional test 
before the licence is granted.  

 
6.0 CONCLUSION 
 
6.1 Members are requested to consider the options on page 1. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Document Pack Page 12



 5

List of Background Papers:- 
Nil 
Contact Details:- 
 
Mr M Bridge 
Licensing Unit Manager 
3 Knowsley Place 
Duke Street 
Bury 
BL9 OEJ 
Telephone: 0161 253 5509 
Email: m.bridge@bury.gov.uk 
 

Document Pack Page 13



 6

           Appendix 1. 
 
 
CURRENT PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE ‘EXCEPTIONAL CONDITION’ CRITERIA 

 
 

a. Vehicles must never have been entered on the HPI register. Even if 
removed from the register, vehicles will be excluded.  

 
b. No re-test of the vehicle will be permitted (other than replacing faulty   

light bulbs.  
 
c. Interior fascias, linings, carpets and upholstery to be free from 

damage i.e. cuts, blemishes, tears, with no evidence of repairs. All to 
be in a clean and tidy condition.  

 
d. Chassis to be free from defects, distortions, repairs including welding.  

 
e. Vehicle to be as per the manufacturer specification for model. 

Modifications or adoptions only allowed with the consent of the 
council. 

 
f. Vehicles must meet this ‘exceptional condition’ criteria at each test 

and also at roadside checks. Should a vehicle fail at a roadside check, 
then the ‘exceptional condition’ status is suspended and the vehicle 
will not be re-licensed. 

 
g. Bodywork must be free from blemishes and corrosion damage. Body 

and paintwork to be maintained in an exceptional condition. All 
repairs to the body and paintwork are to be professionally carried out 
by VIBRA member and subject to inspection by the council’s Vehicle 
Examiner. 

 
h. Exceptional condition criteria will also consider the previous fault 

history of the vehicle. 
 

Document Pack Page 14



 7

Appendix 2. 
 

Definition of a fault for the ‘5 fault Rule’ testing purposes 
 
 

Ser: Category of fault: Description of 
fault: 
 

Number 
of faults: 

Remarks: 

1 MOT ITEMS Any individual fault 
which would cause 
the vehicle to fail the 
standard MOT test 
will count as: 
 

1 Fault e.g.  leaking brake 
cylinder plus a bald tyre 
is 2 faults.  

2 INTERIOR Any combination of a 
number of faults 
within the interior of 
the vehicle (not 
including the 
dashboard 
instruments working 
correctly e.g. a 
broken 
speedometer) will 
count as: 
 

1 Fault (e.g. a torn passenger 
seat plus  stained 
upholstery plus a hole in 
carpet will count as only 
1 fault). 
 

3 PAINTWORK Damage to the 
vehicle paintwork 
regardless as to the 
number of areas 
concerned, will count 
as: 
  

1 Fault e.g. Damaged paintwork 
on 4 panels would count 
as 1 fault. 
 
 

4 BODYWORK 
DAMAGE / 
RUST 

Any number of dents 
/  scratches / rusting  
which materially 
effects the 
appearance of the  
vehicle will count as: 
 

1 Fault e.g. A damaged 
passenger door and a 
damaged /  rusted n/s 
wing would count as 1 
fault. 
 
 

5 EXCLUDED ITEMS For the purpose of 
the ‘5 Fault Rule’, 
the following items 
would require 
rectifying before a 
pass certificate was 
issued but would not 
be counted as  
faults: 

Nil Fault Light bulbs not working 
No fire extinguisher 
No Fare card on display 
Absence of vehicle 
signage 
A missing licence plate 
No taxi meter fitted / not 
accurate / not operating 
correctly. 

 
 

Document Pack Page 15



 8

           Appendix 3. 
 
Summary of responses received in relation to the Private Hire & Hackney Carriage 
vehicle licensing and testing consultation:  
 

Number of  
consultation  
documents  
sent out:: 
 

Total number of  
respondents: 

Number of 
Hackney 
respondents:  
 

Number of  
Private Hire 
respondents: 
 

864  66  (approx 7.3%) 47  20 

 
 Private Hire responses: 
 
Do you believe that the current council policies relating to the licensing of Hackney 
Carriages and Private Hire vehicles need changing? 

 
Yes 6 No 11   (3 respondents did not answer the question) 

 
If you have answered Yes to question 2, do you think that the policy criteria relating 
to both types of vehicles should be the same: 
 

Yes 5 No   1 
  

A council cannot refuse to licence or renew a vehicle licence based solely on the 
age of a vehicle. What age policy would you like to see the council adopt in relation 
to the type of vehicle licence you currently hold? 

 

None. Age could be discounted as a barrier and replaced by a maximum number years a 
vehicle can be licensed. A standard vehicle such as a Toyota, Ford or Vauxhall Astra 
could be allowed a maximum of six years licensing regardless of age of the vehicle when 
initially licensed. Purpose built vehicles could be increased to 10 years maximum 
regardless of the use as either Hackney or private hire. Minibuses may be given the higher 
maximum regardless of their licensed use.  

No, I believe the current council policies on licensing should remain as they are. 

No Change. 

10 years as current. 

Both vehicle types should be licensed up to 10 years old and once licensed stay on up to 
15 yrs. 

15 years. 

10 years. 

15 Year old. 

Current age policy 

Up to 10 years old then should go off 

I suggest that the council’s policy should be flexible for the vehicles under 10 years. 

Unchanged. 

10 Years old 

Current age policy 

 
Current legislation allows a council to fully test a licensed vehicle up to a maximum 
of 3 times per year. New vehicles up to 2 years old are currently tested only once 
per year. If you believe that in order to maintain the safety, performance, 
appearance and comfort of licensed vehicles that they should be subjected to more 

Document Pack Page 16



 9

tests as they get older, what age/test policy would you like to see the council 
adopt?   (e.g. up 2yrs old 1 test, 2 to 8 yrs old 2 tests,  over 8yrs old 3 tests per year) 

 

I am more than satisfied with the current council policy on testing vehicles based on their 
age as stated by the council. 

The 5 fault rule should remain to ensure that 10 year old vehicles that were purchased as 
first time taxis are kept in pristine condition throughout their plates period. The councils 
website could hold information of all previously licensed vehicles to ensure drivers do not 
purchase a vehicle that has already exceeded its maximum use. A simple search of the 
registration number would give information on the number of plates previously allocated to 
that vehicle.  

No Change. 

Up to 8 years – 1 test. 

Vehicles should be tested no more than twice a year as recommended by the OFT. 

Exceptional condition rule is unfair and unreasonable to expect tom expect a vehicle to be 
in show room condition at 10 yrs. 

Over 8 -  3 tests. 

Old regulation is fine. 

Maximum 2 tests. 

Correct policy 

Leave it at twice a year 

Happy with current policy 

Over 10 years 3 tests 

Not necessary to increase. 

2 years 1 test – 2 to 8 years 2 tests 

2 to 10 years 2 tests per year 

Stay as it is 

 
In addition to the number of tests a vehicle should be subjected to per year, can you 
suggest any other conditions such as the 5 fault rule, which will motivate a vehicle 
owner to maintain their licensed vehicles? 

 

I have no other suggestions in regard to the 5 Fault Rule or any replacement policy to be 
put in place. 

Testing at six month intervals already ensures that each vehicle is inspected 3 times per 
year. Example, test 1 16th Jan  2013, test 2 16th June 2013, test 3 15th Jan  2014 equals 3 
tests in 1 calendar year. This should be sufficient although I accept that some owners 
neglect their vehicles. A 4th test for everyone should not be the only solution. My 
suggestion would be that all vehicles are charged the same amount for tests and that any 
vehicle that fails on more than 5 faults is allocated a further inspection within four months. 
In the event that is presented 4 months later with less than five faults it can be allocated a 
third inspection six months later where regardless of the number of faults it will be due an 
annual inspection 2 months later. This would encourage drivers to keep on top of their 
vehicles to ensure they only require tests at six monthly intervals regardless of the age of 
that vehicle.  

None. 

Have a 5 fault rule for mechanical faults which does not include cosmetic faults i.e. interior, 
bodywork etc.  

Independent scrutiniser to decide fate of vehicles failing test – i.e. independent MOT 
station or directly to VOSA 

After 10 years a private hire vehicle is no different than a hackney and so if both carry the 
public then the 5 point rule should apply to both. 

Ok as it is 

If checked properly shouldn’t be any faults 

Document Pack Page 17



 10 

No 

Maintenance and service records as done with PSV vehicles 

None 

 
State any other ideas you may have to assist the council in this review process: 

 

The council should consider any feedback from Hackney licence vehicles on a group basis 
which should not affect the process of Private Hire vehicles or the drivers as the privileges 
which Hackney vehicles have Private Hire vehicles are not entitled to as they have to work 
on a fully insured booking basis through licensed offices. 

Licence plates to be produced on same day after passing test. 

Abandon Bury Council and plate public hire with a neighbouring Authority. Thus Bury 
council loosing revenue 

Have more garages – at least 3 

If the vehicle is road worthy and bodywork good at 10 years of age then why if it fails on 3 
items for instance does this mean this car must not pass even if the owner is willing to 
carry out the necessary works to achieve the standard required. Most modern cars are 
now good for 15 years.  

I think the test and the rule should be the same for all taxis and cars. Should be off at ten 
years old.  

I personally think that the council should consider about the numbers of taxi drivers in the 
borough because there is some difficulty to make livings for all.  

 
Hackney Carriage responses: 
 
The following response was received from Mr Oakes, Chairman of the Hackney Drivers 
Association. Of the total 47 responses received, 36 were duplicate copies of Mr Oakes  
response.   
 

Question: Response received: 
 

Do you believe that the current 
council policies relating to the 
licensing of Hackney Carriages and 
Private Hire vehicles need changing? 
 

Yes 

Do you think that the policy criteria 
relating to both types of vehicles 
should be the same? 
 

There should be no age limit for either, there 
should be a limit on hackneys, there should be 
a survey carried out to see that council policy is 
still serving the public. 
 

A council cannot refuse to licence or 
renew a vehicle licence based solely 
on the age of a vehicle. What age 
policy would you like to see the 
council adopt in relation to the type of 
vehicle licence you currently hold? 
 
 
 

There should be no age limit for either 

Current legislation allows a council to 
fully test a licensed vehicle up to a 
maximum of 3 times per year. New 
vehicles up to 2 years old are 

Up to 3 yr old 1 test, 3 and upwards 2 tests 

Document Pack Page 18



 11 

currently tested only once per year.  If 
you believe that in order to maintain 
the safety, performance, appearance 
and comfort of licensed vehicles that 
they should be subjected to more 
tests as they get older, what age/test 
policy would you like to see the 
council adopt? 
 
 

In addition to the number of tests a 
vehicle should be subjected to per 
year, can you suggest any other 
conditions such as the 5 fault rule, 
which will motivate a vehicle owner to 
maintain their licensed vehicles? 
 

The five fault rule should be removed and a 3 
strikes policy if a vehicle fails on more than say 
6 faults on the third time it would not be 
renewed. 

State any other ideas you may have 
to assist the council in this review 
process? 

There should be a minimum 2 testing stations, 
rear loaders should be allowed i.e. Fiat 
Freedom or Doblo. The council should provide 
a rank for the loading of rear loaders as in 
other councils. 

 
Responses from the other 10 Hackney respondents: 
 
Do you believe that the current council policies relating to the licensing of     
Hackney Carriages and Private Hire vehicles need changing? 

 
Yes 5 No 5 

 
If you have answered Yes to question 2, do you think that the policy criteria relating 
to both types of vehicles should be the same: 

 
Yes 4            No 1 

 
A council cannot refuse to licence or renew a vehicle licence based solely on the age 
of a vehicle. What age policy would you like to see the council adopt in relation to the 
type of vehicle licence you currently hold? 

 

8 years and off. 

6 year old.  

The local council should adopt the same policy in hackney trade as is the councils of 
Rochdale or Bolton Council. 

No age limit. 

No age policy but car / vehicle quality. 

In my opinion age is not a concern as long as the vehicle passes the safety standard. 

 
Current legislation allows a council to fully test a licensed vehicle up to a maximum 
of 3 times per year. New vehicles up to 2 years old are currently tested only once per 
year. If you believe that in order to maintain the safety, performance, appearance and 
comfort of licensed vehicles that they should be subjected to more tests as they get 
older, what age/test policy would you like to see the council adopt? 

 

(e.g. up 2yrs old 1 test, 2 to 8 yrs old 2 tests,  over 8yrs old 3 tests per year)Up to 3 years 

Document Pack Page 19



 12 

1 test, 3-6 2 tests, over 6- 3 tests. How about looking at mileage rather than age. 

Should stay same as until 2013.  

Maximum 2 tests no age limit. 

2 tests a year is efficient. 

 
In addition to the number of tests a vehicle should be subjected to per year, can you 
suggest any other conditions such as the 5 fault rule, which will motivate a vehicle 
owner to maintain their licensed vehicles? 

No some people will just do the minimum the easier it is the less they do. Charge a fee for 
number of faults if 1 fault £10, 5 faults £50.  

5 fault rule should be amended or there should be no 5 fault rule i.e. taxi should be 
repaired before it is plated back.  

If the vehicle has more than 15 faults then it should be taken off the road.  

Where cosmetics are concerned it should not be fail fault. But it should be put right. 

 
 State any other ideas you may have to assist the council in this review process:  
 

There should be more incentive to operate new vehicles i.e. Euro 5 emissions possible 
priority on ranks. 

The hackney rules should stay the same as in 2013.  

The local council should not consider the private and public hire vehicles in the same 
categories as the hackney is purpose built for wheelchair while the private one is not., 
which means the public hire vehicle is expensive to build again.  

I think there should be no age limit for hackney and private hire. As a taxi driver we can’t 
afford to buy a car and getting it plated transferring insurance getting new meter and 
getting it wired. To do that it cost around £6000. There’s not much work to cover the costs. 
I would like to say old car are better than new car. New cars break down more. They have 
more problem with engine management and other electrical problem which is more costly 
for the driver and taking time off work that’s where the driver loses money and that’s where 
the problem comes where they can’t pay insurance money or they can’t pay the radio 
money. I don’t think there should be age limit in Bury because there is not much work in 
Bury. I can name three councils that don’t have age limit, Bolton, Rochdale, Stockport. If 
these councils don’t have age limit why should Bury have age limit. Another thing I would 
like to point out is when you get drunk person in your car either he will do sick in your car 
and does not want to pay valeting charge which is £30 or when they are arguing of fare 
sometime they will kick you car denting the door in or smashing window screen. If its a 
newer car it will cost us drivers more money for repairs. I don’t think public deserve new 
car. Some do majority of them don’t.  

Abolish 5 fault rule, give driver chance to fix problem without fault rule. 

I like to keep as it is.  5 fault must keep on and only 2 tests from 6 years and over.  

No changing keep same please.  

No changing please. 

Happy with policy want it to stay as it is.  

 
Other comments: 

 

Purpose built hackney carriage vehicles are made specifically for the job and as such they 
are priced accordingly. The parts are generally more expensive and more robust. The 
difference should therefore be based around the vehicle itself and not in accordance with 
the type of licence that it displays.  

 

Document Pack Page 20



Agenda Item 9 Document Pack Page 21

Document is Restricted



Document Pack Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10 Document Pack Page 25

Document is Restricted



Document Pack Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING
	5 OPERATIONAL REPORT
	6 REVIEW OF CURRENT POLICIES  RELATING TO THE LICENSING AND TESTING OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLES
	9 PROPOSED SUSPENSION/REVOCATION OF A PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER'S LICENCE
	10 APPLICATION FOR A PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER'S LICENCE

